
Please ask for  Sheila Cresswell: Telephone (01362) 656232 
e-mail: sheila.cresswell@breckland.gov.uk 

 

 
AGENDA 

 

NOTE: In the case of non-members, this agenda is for information only 

 
 
 

Committee - POLICY DEVELOPMENT AND 

REVIEW PANEL 2 

Date & Time - THURSDAY, 24 JULY, 2008 AT 10.00 AM 

Venue - THE NORFOLK ROOM, CONFERENCE 
SUITE, ELIZABETH HOUSE, DEREHAM 

 
 

Members of the Committee requiring further information, or with specific 
questions, are asked to raise these with the appropriate officer at least two 

working days before the meeting.  If the information requested is available, this 
will be provided, and reported to Committee. 

 
 

Panel 2 Members: 
  
Mr M.A. Kiddle-Morris (Chairman) 
Mr C.R. Jordan 
Mrs J. Ball 
Mr S.G. Bambridge 
Councillor Claire Bowes 
 

Mr M.J. Griffin 
Mrs S.M. Matthews 
Mrs L.H. Monument (Vice-
Chairman) 
Mr D.G. Mortimer 
Mrs P. Quadling 
 

 

 PERSONS ATTENDING THE MEETING PERSONS ATTENDING THE MEETING PERSONS ATTENDING THE MEETING PERSONS ATTENDING THE MEETING 

ARE REQUESTED TO TURN OFF MOBILE ARE REQUESTED TO TURN OFF MOBILE ARE REQUESTED TO TURN OFF MOBILE ARE REQUESTED TO TURN OFF MOBILE 

TELEPHONESTELEPHONESTELEPHONESTELEPHONES    

Member Services 
Elizabeth House, Walpole Loke, 
Dereham Norfolk, NR19 1EE 
 

 

Date: Tuesday, 15 July 2008  
 
 

Public Document Pack



 
Policy Development and Review Panel 2 

24 July 2008 

 

 

 
PART A 

 
ITEMS OPEN TO THE PUBLIC 

 

 Page(s) 
herewith 

 

1. MINUTES  1 - 5 

 To confirm the Minutes of the meeting held on 23 June 2008.  
 

 

2. APOLOGIES   

 To receive apologies for absence.   
 

 

3. URGENT BUSINESS   

 To note the Chairman proposes to accept any item as urgent business, 
pursuant to Section 100(B)(4)(b) of the Local Government Act, 1972.  
 

 

4. DECLARATION OF INTEREST   

  
Members are asked at this stage to declare any interests that they may 
have in any of the following items on the agenda.  The Members' Code of 
Conduct requires that declarations include the nature of the interest and 
whether it is a personal or prejudicial interest.  
 

 

5. NON-MEMBERS WISHING TO ADDRESS THE MEETING   

 To note the names of any non-members wishing to address the meeting.  
 

 

6. HM REVENUE & CUSTOMS CHANGE PROGRAMME  6 - 14 

 Report of the Strategic Director (Services).  
 

 

7. REGULATION OF INVESTIGATORY POWERS ACT 2000 (RIPA)   

 Mr Mike Horn (Head of Legal Services) and Mr Graham Parfitt (Legal 
Executive) to give a presentation on the Regulation of Investigatory 
Powers Act 2000 and how this has been applied by Breckland.  
 

 

8. WORK PROGRAMME  15 

 To consider the work programme.  
 

 

9. DATE OF NEXT MEETING   

 To note that the next meeting will be held on Wednesday, 3 September 
2008, at 10.00 a.m. in the Bowls Room, Watton Sports Centre, Dereham 
Road, Watton.  
 

 

 



Policy Development and Review Panel 2 
24 July 2008 

 

 

 

PROTOCOL 
 

The Working Style of the Policy Development & Review Panels 
 

This document sets out the roles of Members and Officers, and the general principles to be adopted 
by the Policy Development & Review Panels (PD&RP) overseeing the Panel’s mode of operation. 
 
Member Leadership 
Members of the Panel will undertake scrutiny topics as directed by the Overview & Scrutiny 
Commission (O&SC) and will recognise that best practice identifies scrutiny as a Member-led activity. 
The Panel will expect Cabinet members, to take responsibility for answering their questions about 
topics which primarily relate to the Council’s activities. 
 
A Constructive Atmosphere 
Meetings of the Panel will be constructive and not judgmental. Panel recognises and accepts that 
effective scrutiny is best achieved through challenging and constructive enquiry. People giving 
evidence at Panel should be given due respect and not made to feel under attack. 
 
Independence  
Members of the PD&RP will not be subject to whipping arrangements by the party groups. 
 
Respect and Trust 
Meetings will be conducted in a spirit of mutual respect and trust. 
 
Consensus 
Members of the Panel will work together and, while recognising political allegiances, will attempt to 
achieve consensus and agreed recommendations. There will be recognition that the Panel has a 
primary duty to scrutinise on behalf of the community. 
 
Openness and Transparency 
The PD&RP’s business will be open and transparent, except where there are sound reasons for 
protecting confidentiality. The minutes of the Panel’s meetings will explain the discussion and debate 
so that they can be understood by an outside reader. 
 
Impartial and Independent Officer Advice 
Officers who advise and support the Panel will give impartial and independent advice, as officers 
support all members of the Council. 
 
Regular Review 
There will be regular reviews of how the scrutiny process is working, and a willingness to change if it 
is not working effectively. 
 
Programming and Planning  
The Panel will have a programme of work assigned by the Overview & Scrutiny Commission. The 
Panel will be able to suggest additional topics for review through the O&SC for approval in the work 
programme. Before each topic is commenced, the O&SC will agree the scope of the exercise, what 
information they will need initially, and which members, officers and external witnesses they wish to 
see. 
 
Managing Time 
The Panel will aim to conclude the business of each meeting in reasonable time. The order of 
business will be arranged as far as possible to minimise the demands on the time of witnesses. 
Where possible, members should give advance notice of specific questions being provided at the time 
of the meeting to save items being deferred. 
 
 



1 

BRECKLAND COUNCIL 
 

At a Meeting of the 
 

POLICY DEVELOPMENT AND REVIEW PANEL 2 
 

Held on Monday, 23 June 2008 at 10.00 am in 
The Anglia Room, Conference Suite, Elizabeth House, Dereham 

 
PRESENT  
Mr M.A. Kiddle-Morris (Chairman) 
Mrs J. Ball 
Councillor Claire Bowes 
 

Mrs L.H. Monument (Vice-Chairman) 
Mr D.G. Mortimer 
 

 
In Attendance  
Mark Broughton - Member Development Officer 
Sheila Cresswell - Member Services Officer 
Stephen McGrath - Member Development Team Leader 
Elaine Wilkes - Senior Member Services Officer 

 
 
 Action By 

16/08 MINUTES   

  

 The minutes of the meeting held on 8 May 2008 were confirmed as a 
correct record and signed by the Chairman.  

 

   

17/08 APOLOGIES   

  

 Apologies for absence were received from Mr. C.R. Jordan, Mr. S.G. 
Bambridge, Mr. M.J. Griffin and Mrs. P. Quadling.  

 

   

18/08 MEMBER DEVELOPMENT AND TRAINING - POLICY AND 
STRATEGY (AGENDA ITEM 6)  

 

  

 The Member Development Team Leader presented the report which 
sought Members’ views on the new Member Development and Training 
Policy and the revisions to the Member Development and Training 
Strategy, previously agreed by the Council in March 2007. 
 
The Council had established a cross-party Member Development Panel 
in September 2008 to progress work on achieving the East of England 
Regional Assembly (EERA) Charter on Elected Member Development 
and Training and had signed up to the principles of achieving the 
Charter by March 2009.  The adoption of the revised Strategy and the 
new Policy formed an essential part of this process. 
 
The objectives of the Charter were to: 
 

o Be fully committed to developing Elected Members in order to 
achieve the Council’s aims and objectives. 

o Adopt the Member-led strategic approach to Elected Member 
development. 

o Have a Member learning and development plan in place that 
clearly identified the differences that development activities 
would make. 

o See that learning and development was effective in building 
capacity. 

 

Agenda Item 1

1



Policy Development and Review Panel 2 
23 June 2008 

 
 

2 

 Action By 

o Address widely development matters to promote work-life 
balance and citizenship. 

 
The main role of the Member Development Panel was to: 
 

§ Prepare the future Member Development and Training 
Programme and to identify the best ways of providing this 
training, including preparing an individual training plan for all 
Members based on their role on the Council and their identified 
needs established through the self-assessment questionnaire. 
 

§ Progress work on achieving the Charter. 
 

§ Evaluate and monitor the effectiveness of the training and make 
changes in the work programme. 
 

§ Share best practice amongst Members. 
 

§ To ensure that the Member Support Action Plan, developed in 
liaison with the Local Government Information Unit, is 
progressed and delivered. 
 

§ Develop projects to improve access to local democracy and, in 
particular, to develop links with local schools and youth groups. 
 

Members were advised that the Council was due to be assessed for 
Charter status on 4 November 2008.  The inspection would be made 
over one day and would be carried out by three Inspectors appointed by 
South East Employers, who would undertake a series of interviews with 
officers and Members, including the Leader of the Council, 
representatives of the opposition Groups, the Member Development 
Panel, and five to eight other Members of the Council, politically 
balanced and representing a cross-section of Members by experience, 
as well as the Chief Executive, Member Services Manager and Member 
Development Team Leader. 
 
The existing Strategy had been updated and enhanced in line with best 
practice.  The Policy had been formulated in line with the EERA 
framework and adapted to fit the Council’s needs and was aimed at the 
provision of development and training for Members, which would be 
tailored to meet their individual needs and aspirations. 
 
In answer to questions, the following points were noted: 
 

§ The value of the Charter would extend beyond the outcome of 
the current debate on the Local Government Review. 

§ The Government’s evolving modernisation agenda and the 
requirement to make Members community leaders placed an 
increasing emphasis on the Council’s approach to enhancing 
Member development, training and support.   

§ A key aim of the Charter assessment process would be to 
enable the Inspectors to gain an overview of how the Council 
was dealing with Member development and training. 

§ The process had commenced last year with a much enhanced 
induction process for new Members. 

§ The policy recognised that Members had differing circumstances 

2



Policy Development and Review Panel 2 
23 June 2008 

 
 

3 

 Action By 

and needs and the programme would be developed with that in 
mind and in response to the findings of the recent Member 
survey. 

 
In concluding its discussion, the Panel 
 

RESOLVED that the report be noted and 
 
RECOMMEND to Overview and Scrutiny Commission to support 
the adoption of the new Member Development and Training Policy 
and the revisions to the Member Development and Training 
Strategy.  

   

19/08 MEMBER TRAINING - PERSONAL DEVELOPMENT PLANS 
(AGENDA ITEM 7)  

 

  

 The Member Development Team Leader presented the report, which 
advised Members of the results of the recent survey on Member 
Development and the next steps to be taken towards the production of 
individual development plans and the structuring of the training 
programme to reflect the needs identified. 
  
To date, 47 out of the 54 Members had returned their Questionnaires, 
which represented an 87% return. 
 
The general findings of the survey only were given in the report and it 
was stressed that the individual results would be kept strictly 
confidential and that they were not eligible for any public or internal 
scrutiny or Freedom of Information requests etc. 
 
The development plans would be formulated with Members individually 
according to their stated needs and the training programme structured 
accordingly to take account of providers, method of provision (e.g. in-
house, external, jointly, courses, seminars, timing, etc.) over what 
period and in light of budget. 
 
The report highlighted those main areas where full training was required 
and those where some training was needed.  In addition to those, there 
had been subsequent requests for training in the following areas: 
 

§ How the Council works. 
§ The Business Plan and the decision-making process. 
§ The relationship with outside bodies/partnerships and how they 

operate. 
 
Members of the Panel suggested it would be beneficial for the 
programme to include also the Local Development Framework and that 
pictorial or graphical illustrations should be included as a useful aid to 
Members. 
 
The report had also been considered by the Member Development 
Programme at its meeting on 19 June 2008, when it was agreed to: 
 

(1) Recognise the key areas of corporate training and 
development need identified and produce or modify training 
programmes as appropriate. 

 

3



Policy Development and Review Panel 2 
23 June 2008 

 
 

4 

 Action By 

 
(2) Use evidence from the survey analysis and take account of the 

personalised part of the questionnaire returns and corporate 
training needs to produce personal development plans. 
 

(3) Personal development plans being subject to timings to meet 
development needs and kept under review. 
 

(4) The officers recommending how best to provide the training, 
according to priorities identified individually and corporately, 
looking at different providers and methods of provision, over 
what period and in the light of available budget. 

 
RESOLVED that this Panel notes the report and supports the 
proposals as agreed by the Member Development Panel for the 
production of individual development plans and the structuring of 
the training programme to reflect the needs identified.  

   

20/08 ACTION PLAN UPDATE - ALL MEMBERS MATTER PROGRAMME 
FOR BRECKLAND DISTRICT COUNCIL (AGENDA ITEM 8)  

 

  

 The report was presented by the Member Development Team Leader, 
who outlined the additional progress made to the action plan since the 
last review in February 2008 of the Council’s All Members Matter 
Programme. 
 
During consideration of several of the aims in the action plan, the 
following points were made: 
 

o The question of pressures of time on Members to be able to 
respond to the many new initiatives coming forward, to be able 
to maintain a work-life balance and the volume of reading 
material being produced by the Council was made.  Members 
were advised that the officers were looking at these issues.  The 
facilities being provided were aimed at assisting Members in 
their roles but it was up to Members if they wished to make use 
of them. 
 

o Members were naturally fully active and engaged in their 
constituency and Council roles which should be recognised and 
it was felt there should not be any detriment to them if they did 
not feel the need to take up all of the training or other facilities 
now being promoted.   
 

o So far as Parish Councils were concerned, it was noted there 
was no obligation on the District Council to provide training for 
them.  However, the 2008/09 training programme would offer 
training on Chairmanship.  Standards training had been provided 
and advice or other specific training was provided by relevant 
officers on request and this would continue.  Although it was 
recognised that parishes were being briefed on the site specifics 
under the LDF, it was suggested parishes could benefit from 
further advice on the LDF process generally, as it was felt this 
may not be clearly understood by all. 
 
 

 

4



Policy Development and Review Panel 2 
23 June 2008 

 
 

5 

 Action By 

o So far as the Breckland Voice magazine was concerned, a 
member felt the method of delivery should be reviewed so far as 
blocks of flats were concerned because copies of the magazine 
at these locations were left in bundles with the communal refuse 
bins and did not get delivered to the individual occupiers.  

 
RESOLVED that the Panel notes the additional progress made on 
the Action Plan and the points raised above be taken into account.  

   

21/08 WORK PROGRAMME (AGENDA ITEM 9)   

  

 The Member Development Officer presented the updated work 
programme, which included two new items as follows: 
 

§ Street lighting levy review – Provisionally programmed for 24 
July 2008 meeting. 

§ Empty homes policy review – Provisionally programmed for 24 
July 2008 meeting. 

 
The Panel agreed to suggestions to include the following items in the 
forward programme for consideration: 
 

1. Review of the Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act (RIPA).  In 
the light of concerns raised by the Chairman of the Local 
Government Association about the over-zealous use of this Act 
by some authorities, to look at what use, if any, is made of these 
powers by Breckland Council at the next meeting of the Panel. 
 

2. Breckland Voice – In view of the concern raised in the previous 
item about deliveries to blocks of flats, to look at the existing and 
comparable options for delivery and associated costs. 

 
RESOLVED that the additional items outlined above be 
incorporated into the work programme for future consideration.  

 

   

22/08 DATE OF NEXT MEETING   

  

 The arrangements for the next meeting on 24 July 2008 were noted.   

   

 
 
The meeting closed at 10.55 am 
 
 
 

CHAIRMAN 

5



BRECKLAND COUNCIL 
 
Report of the Strategic Director for Services - Mark Stokes 
POLICY DEVELOPMENT AND REVIEW PANEL 2 – 24 July 2008 
 

HM REVENUE & CUSTOMS CHANGE PROGRAMME 
 

1. Purpose of Report 

1.1 This report provides members with brief notes on the HM Revenue & Customs 
(HMRC) Change Programme.  HMRC is currently consulting on this change 
programme with stakeholders.  Panel 2 are asked to debate the issues around the 
proposed changes and inform the consultation response.  HMRC local 
representation and the Member of Parliament have been invited to this meeting. The 
HMRC changes affect the citizens of Breckland through the proposed closure of the 
Revenues Building in Dereham.  The report is for information only, no decision is 
required. 

 

2. Recommendations 

2.1 There are no recommendations as this report is for information only. 

 
Note:  In preparing this report, due regard has been given to equality of opportunity, human 
rights, prevention of crime and disorder, environmental and risk management considerations 
as appropriate.  Relevant officers have been consulted in relation to any legal, financial or 
human resources implications and comments received are reflected in the report. 

 

3. Information, Issues and Options 

3.1 Background 

3.1.1 Introduction  

The ‘Change Programme’ is designed to support HMRC’s plans to modernise and 
transform its operations by matching work, offices and accommodation needs 
throughout the UK.  It requires a re-think on how its people and work are organised 
on the ground.  Customers will not be affected. 

3.1.2 Drivers 

• Amalgamation of the HM Customs & Excise and HM Inland Revenue estates 
and personnel. 

• Value for money for tax payers. 

• By 2011 HMRC estimates it will require approximately 25% fewer staff and a 
third less accommodation to deliver its business.   

• More efficient ways of working and removal of duplication. 

3.1.3 Method 

The Programme is being conducted via a rolling programme of reviews looking at 
initial proposals in each region.  It is mainly an internal review process including 
formal staff and union consultation but it will engage a wider programme of 
consultation with external stakeholders including local authorities and MPs. 

Each region is reviewed using a phased process consisting of: 

Phase 1 – diagnostic and proposals developed. 

Phase 2 – Feasibility and consultation on those proposals, and publication of views 

Agenda Item 6

6



 

and finally decision making. 

Phase 3 – Implementation and impact assessment of vacation. 

3.1.4 Impact in Breckland 

There is only one HMRC office location in Breckland which is in Dereham.  The 
HMRC office in Dereham has been there since 1938 and is in a town centre location 
and currently provides 30 jobs. 

The Dereham HMRC office makes up part of Cluster 11 which currently has 480 
staff.  The requirement for 2011 is 400 staff for this cluster.  Cluster 11 includes 
offices in Dereham, Great Yarmouth and Norwich.  This cluster configuration will 
remain after the review. 

Dereham had 10,600 physical walk-in enquiries in 06/07 (compared to 35,500 in 
Norwich) which is average for a market town. 

3.1.5 Timetable 

Urban centres have already been reviewed and currently HMRC is now reviewing 
the Cluster locations.  Cluster 11 is currently in consultation, i.e. Phase 2.  Breckland 
Council and other stakeholders have been asked for their views within six weeks.  
The deadline for responses is the 25 July 2008. 

3.1.6 Proposal in Cluster 11 

• All face-to-face enquiry centres will remain; therefore it is understood that 
there will still be a presence office in Dereham. 

• Reduce staffing from 480 to 400 by 2011 

• Retain – Nelson House, Norwich – 190 staff 

• Retain – St Cuthberts House, Norwich – 70 staff 

• Withdraw – Revenue Buildings, Dereham – 30 staff 

• Withdraw – Havenbridge House, Great Yarmouth – 140 staff 

• Withdraw - Rosebery Court, Norwich – 50 staff 

3.1.7 HMRC Local Response 

We have been provided with a copy of the HMRC Local response to the 
consultation.  The following gives an overview: 

• PCS Norwich Taxes Branch (on behalf of HMRC local) does not accept the 
proposals for restructuring. 

• Reduction in face-to-face hours for customers is not acceptable for customer 
service. 

• Members are concerned about travelling further to work, costs of moving, 
career prospects and workloads. 

• Proposals do not break down savings by office. 

• Withdrawal from Great Yarmouth does not consider socio-economic impact. 

• Withdrawal of Dereham fails to take into account the low cost of 
accommodation, expanding population and increased burden on staff to 
travel significant distances to work. 

• The response proposes the retention of an office in Dereham and a reduction 
in the size of the office at Havenbridge House.  It also proposes to vacate St 
Cuthberts House in Norwich on a cost analysis basis. 

7



 

3.1.7 Breckland Council Involvement To Date 

• Breckland Council was contacted on the 13 June 2008 as a stakeholder to 
provide input to the review formally in writing. 

• Cllr Fanthorpe, Cllr Goreham, Cllr Nunn, Trevor Holden and Ralph Burton 
met Leena Curtis and Lee Sutton from the Dereham HMRC office on the 30 
June 2008 for an initial informal discussion.  Notes are at Appendix 1. 

3.1.8 Issues 

It is still unclear if Dereham will remain as an Enquiry Centre. 

HMRC has requested input from Breckland Council on the initial proposals on: 

• Local or regional economic factors which may be relevant to decisions on 
particular offices 

• Specific regeneration plans that may affect the proposals 

• Withdrawal or influx of any other government departments or large or 
significant employers in/out of the area in the last two years – jobs 
gained/lost 

• Plans for new or improved transport links 

HMRC central have agreed to attend a meeting on the 15 July 2008 at Dereham.  
Paul Smyth from the Workforce Change department and Les Smith who is the 
Regional Lead in the East for the programme will attend.  They have stated they are 
unable to attend any public Overview & Scrutiny Commission meeting. 

A copy of the consultation letter is at Appendix 2. 

3.1.9 Breckland Council Draft Response 

The Breckland Council response needs to strengthen the evidence and arguments 
put forward in the HMRC local response. 

It also needs to include reasoned arguments around commercial costs and 
environmental and rural impact. 

3.4 Options 

3.4.1    This paper is for information only.  Members are requested to debate this issue and 
inform officers about the content of the Councils response and submission to the 
consultation. 

3.5 Reasons for Recommendation(s) 

3.5.1 As per 3.4.1 this report is for information only and there are no options to consider 
and therefore no recommendations 

4. Risk and Financial Implications 

4.1 Risk  

4.1.1 I have completed the Risk Management questionnaire and this report does not 
require a risk assessment because the changes/issues covered by the 
recommendations are not significant in terms of risk. 

4.2 Financial  

4.2.1 None required. 

8



 

5. Legal Implications 

5.1 Nothing specific at this stage. 

6. Other Implications    

a) Equalities: None. 

b) Section 17, Crime & Disorder Act 1998: None. 

c) Section 40, Natural Environment & Rural Communities Act 2006: None. 

d) Human Resources: None. 

e) Human Rights: None. 

f) Other:  [e.g. Children’s Act 2004] None. 

7. Alignment to Council Priorities 

7.1 Priority: Prosperous Communities 

Objectives: 

• Promote the start-up, growth and retention of local businesses and the 
strengthening of Breckland’s entrepreneurial culture. 

• Protect and enhance our town centres. 

• Develop flourishing rural communities. 

• Promote the development of a more skilled workforce. 

Priority: Building Safer and Stronger Communities 

Objectives:  

• Promote the sense of community belonging and pride. 

• Ensure all services are provided in a fair and equitable manner. 

8. Ward/Community Affected 

All wards. 

 
Background Papers: 
None 
 
Lead Contact Officer: 
Name/Post: Ralph Burton – Economic Development Officer 
Telephone: 01362 656235 
Email: ralph.burton@breckland.gov.uk 
 
Key Decision Status (Executive Decisions only): 
This is a non-key decision. 
This is on the Forward Plan. 
 
Appendices attached to this report:  
Appendix 1 – Meeting Record of meeting between Breckland Council representatives and 
HMRC local in Dereham on 30 June 2008. 
Appendix 2 – Letter from HMRC central inviting response for consultation 

9



 

Appendix 1 
 

Date: 30 June 2008 

Time: 12.00 Meeting Record 
 Location: Breckland Council 

Meeting Title: HMRC Closure Programme Type of meeting: Exploration 

Facilitator: Ralph Burton Note / Minute 
taker: 

Ralph Burton 

Attendees: 

Leena Curtis – HMRC 

Lee Sutton – HMRC 

William Nunn – BDC 

Robin Goreham – BDC 

Michael Fanthorpe – BDC 

Trevor Holden – BDC 

Ralph Burton - BDC 

Notes & Discussion Points: 

TH - 

• What are the drivers for change were on this programme? 

• Confirmed that BDC does not want to see a withdrawal of the HMRC office from Dereham. 

LS - 

• Local HMRC does not want an HMRC decision that is damaging to the people who work in Dereham.  
Many employees in Dereham have worked there a long time.  There will be a big impact on those 
staff relocating or a cost inconvenience.   

• Local HMRC is against the proposals and wants to retain the jobs in Dereham that are currently there.  
A local network of support works; need to keep it that way.   

• HMRC are encouraging more people to use call centres, this is not focussing on customers prime 
need, the face-to-face approach works.  Local HMRC wants to retain a face-to-face service in 
Dereham. 

LC - 

• Contact centre national staff turnover is 20-40% which has a big impact on business.  HMRC wants to 
centralise in strategic centres, however ICT solutions exist these days to allow people to work 
anywhere.   

• HMRC local cannot see the business case for the change programme.  HMRC has been in Dereham 
since 1938, never had a staffing problem, is a cheap location for HMRC.  Currently HMRC Dereham 
import work from elsewhere.   

• The Cabinet Office (central government) has said it cannot make redundancies in this programme, 
however the staff are not necessarily in the right place and where people are moving out of HMRC is 
not the places they want them to leave.  Suggest asking the Cabinet Office for the cost for the 
redundancy and then add on the cost to recruit and employ in the right place including training costs – 
not good use of tax payer money.   

• HMRC local wants retention or expansion of Dereham branch.  Transport to come out of the city is 
better than going into the city.  HMRC central will only use NOMIS website for statistics, which could 
be inaccurate and will skew the result. 

• Env Impact Assessment will be detrimental in the decision to ask staff to transfer i.e. travel to 
alternative offices.  HMRC have said if people cannot relocate due to unreasonable distance they 
have to keep the existing office open.  HMRC central believes staff are in reasonable travelling 
distance to Norwich and KL, said staff can get to KL & Norwich within 45 mins – No! 

• HMRC central will take into account information from stakeholders – Only stakeholders are assumed 
to be Local Authorities and MPs. 

• HMRC Dereham has 30 staff, but up to a few years ago it was approx. 60. 

• HMRC estate belongs to Mappeley (since 2003). 

• Is a political decision finally.  The HMRC Workforce Change team will recommend to the HMRC 
Board who will in turn recommend to the Minister, Jane Kennedy. 

• Suggested savings in the cluster is £790k per year. 

10



 

Suggested BDC Response – 

• Strengthening the response from the HMRC local union branch. 

• Use arguments of cheapness in Dereham compared to City. 

 

11



 

Appendix 2 
 

 
 

 

 

 

Mary Hay 
Director 

  

  

Workforce Change & PaceSetter 

100 Parliament Street 

London 

SW1A 2BQ 

  

 Tel 020 7147 2753 

  

 Fax       

  

 Email 

 

 FAO The Chief Executive      

 

 

      

    

 Date 13 June 2008 www.hmrc.gov.uk 

 Our Ref        

________ Your Ref        

    

HM Revenue & Customs Change Programme: understanding our impact on local 
communities 

 
Dear Sir/Madam, 
 
Review of East  
 
HMRC is modernising its operations throughout the UK to focus more on what our 
customers need and to save taxpayers’ money.  We are currently reviewing how we 
organise our activities in East Dereham, Great Yarmouth and Norwich and are approaching 
you as a representative of the local/regional authority to give you the opportunity to provide 
an input to the review.   

By 2011 HMRC estimates it will require around 25% fewer staff and a third less 
accommodation to deliver its business. That means a radical re-think of how we deploy 
people in offices around the country, both to reflect our new, more efficient ways of working 
and to take out duplicate capacity as we continue bringing together the former Inland 
Revenue and HM Customs & Excise departments.  

What we are doing 

We are currently conducting a programme of reviews aimed at reducing and reconfiguring 
our existing accommodation - currently housing around 91,000 people in a network of 500 
buildings – in line with our future needs.   

We are consulting our staff and their representatives on how best to do this and as a 
government department, we are also mindful of the potential impact of our decisions on large 
and small communities across the country. We acknowledge that our decision to withdraw 
from a particular location can have a sizable impact on the local community. 

12



 

However, these changes are in the most part for ‘back office’ staff and processes only. Our 
face to face services, through HMRC Enquiry centres, will be retained where they 
currently exist or close by and where we work directly with customers our future business 
model will continue to provide face to face contact 

Reviews are being carried out region by region on a rolling basis.  We have now completed 
the large urban centres which house 78% of our staff, and are now reviewing remaining 
towns and cities where HMRC currently has a presence. The review process will continue 
during 2008 and implementation until at least 2011.  

Further information about the process for the reviews, including an A-Z list of locations, can 
be found on our website at http://www.hmrc.gov.uk/local/transforming-hmrc.htm. 

What we’re proposing to do in your area 

See annex below for specific details on what is proposed in your area. 

What we need your help with 

HMRC wants to consider the views of key stakeholders outside our organisation on the 
change proposals. Nationally we are engaging with a number of representative bodies, from 
both the commercial and voluntary sectors. I would stress that so far we have only made 
initial proposals, not decisions, about which buildings are to close.  Your input will be 
considered as part of our review.  If decisions are made later to keep open some buildings 
that were flagged as possibly closing, the knock on effect could be that some buildings that 
we currently anticipate remaining open will close.  It should also be remembered that 
although we are proposing to withdraw from some buildings, they will become available to 
other employers to lease thus mitigating any potential loss to the local economy. 

We are seeking information on our proposals in so far as they impact on your area as a 
whole and ask you to provide information on all the locations currently under review 
regardless of whether offices there are currently indicated as remaining open or to be 
closed.  In particular, we would be grateful for information on the following topics, which may 
not necessarily be readily understood or in the public domain.   

• Local or regional economic factors which may be relevant to decisions on particular 
offices.  

• Specific regeneration plans you consider our proposals would affect. 

• Withdrawal or influx of any other government departments or large or significant 
employers in/out of your area in the last two years.  If so, how many jobs were 
gained/lost as a result? 

• Plans for new or improved transport links which would have an impact on our 
proposals?  

Any comments you wish to make will be considered by the HMRC team responsible for the 
review, both in the run-up to decision making and during the implementation period that 
follows.  A summary of responses we receive will be published on the HMRC website at a 
later date. We would appreciate a response within six weeks of the date of this letter and 
would be happy for you to share this correspondence with your appropriate elected officials 
and local development agencies.   
 
Responses should be sent to: 
 
Paul Smyth,  
Workforce Change Programme: Community Feedback 
HM Revenue and Customs 
Room 95 
Somerset House, Strand,  

13



 

LONDON   WC2R 1LB 
 

Yours sincerely 
 
 
Mary Hay 
 
 
Mary Hay 
Director, Workforce Change Programme 
 
 
………………………………………………………………………………………………………….. 
 
Annex 
 
East Dereham, Great Yarmouth and Norwich 
 
HMRC’s estate in the above locations currently accommodates around 480 staff, of whom 
some 30 are based in East Dereham, 140 based in Great Yarmouth and a further 310 based 
in Norwich.  The number of HMRC people needed in this area is projected to reduce to 
around 400 by 2011.  Our initial estimates suggest that HMRC’s accommodation needs can 
be met by occupying a smaller number of buildings, and we are therefore proposing to 
reduce our estate in this region from five office buildings to two.  Enquiry centre services at 
Church Street and Havenbridge House will either remain in their current location or be 
relocated nearby. 
 
The proposal is to retain the following buildings: 
 

• Nelson House, Prince of Wales Road, Norwich, Norfolk NR1 1DR   (190 staff) 

• St Cuthbert’s House, 7 Upper King Street, Norwich, Norfolk NR3 1UX   (70 staff) 
 

The proposal is to withdraw from the following buildings: 
 

• Revenue Buildings, 24 Church Street, East Dereham, Norfolk NR19 1DP 

• Havenbridge House, North Quay, Great Yarmouth, Norfolk NR30 1HZ  

• Rosebery Court, St Andrew’s Business Park, Norwich NR7 0HS    (50 staff) 

14



                                                                                                                   10 July 2008 

PD&RPanel2-WkProg&MtgSchedule 

 
 
 
 

Policy Development & Review Panel 2 
 

Work Programme and Meeting Schedule 
 

 

Topic/Item Lead Officer(s) 24 July  
2008  
Dereham 

3 Sept  
2008   
Watton 

16 Oct 
2008  
Dereham 

Work Plans of the 
Sports/Arts 
Development 
Officers  

Riana Rudland 
 

   

Member  
Development  and 
Training 
(2) 

Stephen McGrath 
Ian Vargeson 

   

Breckland 
Website - 
Improvement Plan 
Monitoring (1) 

Jonathan Collison 
Lisa Hilton 

   

Street Lighting 
Levy (3) 
 

Ray Johnson    

Empty Homes 
Policy 
 

Anita Brennan/ 
Gordon Partridge 
 

   

Breckland Council 
use of RIPA 
powers 

Mike Horn    

Breckland Voice – 
Review of 
Distribution 

Mary Palmer/ 
Pam Sayle 

   

Her Majesty’s 
Revenue & 
Customs  

Ralph Burton    

 
 
Notes 
 
(1) Bring forward to 27 November 2008. 
(2) To be scheduled 
(3) To be scheduled 

Agenda Item 8

15


	Agenda
	1 Minutes
	6 HM Revenue & Customs Change Programme
	8 Work Programme

